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In 1769 under the pretext of preventing the penetration of epidemic from the territory
of Poland Austrian forces occupied the area of Spysh region at the order of Joseph II, the co-
regent of Maria Theresia.Soon in 1770 Austria established a so-called cordon sanitaire on the
northern slope of the Carpathians. Thus, the Viennese government annexed the territory of
Spysh, Novotarschyna and Novosonchyzna. According to M. Kryshtanovych these events
gave rise to the first division of the Polish-Lithuanian Commonwealth [6, c. 51].

After the conclusion of the Treaty of Kucuk Kaynarca Austrian government started
negotiations with P. Rumiantsev, the commander of Russian troops, who according to the
treaty withdrow troops from Bukovyna in April 1774, allowing Austria to take control of
these lands. As a hidden fee for withdrawal of Russian troops from Bukovyna he received
from the Austrian government 6 thousands gold guilders and diamond-encrusted gold
snuffbox [13, c. 46]. Austrian government explained officially to Russia the need for the
annexation of Bukovyna by the choise of comfortable military and strategic position against
the Turks. In its view, it was to serve the interests of Russia [5, c. 32]. 3 regiments of cavalry
and 5 infantry battalions participated in the occupation of Bukovyna. From 16 to 19 of
November 1774 border posts with imperial eagles were established within the borders [14,
c. 36].

Having occupied Bukovyna, Austrian Ambassador F. von Tuhut said Turkey that the
Austrian government was considering Bukovyna as a legitimate part of Polish territory
(Galicia), gone to Austria and was determined to defend it at the demand to weapons defend
[3, c. 5]. In March, 1775, Turkey agreed to give Austria the territory of Bukovyna, and in 7
of May , 1775 in Constantinople they signed the Convention on the transfer of Bukovyna;
the document was sealed by signatures of Austrian Ambassador F. von Tuhut and grand vizir
Izet Mehmet Pasha [14, c. 38]. In 2 of July, 1776 in the village Balamutivka it was signed the
Convention on the borders, where the border between Moldova and Bukovyna was fixed [15,
c. 12].

The attempts of Grigore Alexandru Ghica, the Prince of Moldavia to prevent the
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transmission of Bukovyna by Turkey failed. He was killed by the reason of disobedience and
threats towards Turkey in 1777. Austro-Turkish convention dated 7 of May, 1775 was
ratified in 25 of February, 1777 after the final demarcation of the borders. Bukovyna swore
allegiance to the Habsburgs [6, c. 60]. This event, in terms of 1. Nastasiak, can be considered
as the completion of the process of joining the edge as a part of Austria [13, c. 47].

In 1774—1786 military government that subordinated Nadvirniansk military council in
Vienna was ruling Bukovyna. Originally this land was called generalate of Chernivtsi, then
Galician border generalate and later as Bukovyna district. And only in May 1775 the new
Austrian province obtained Bukovyna as the official name with the capital of Chernivtsi city
[13, c. 75]. In 1783 Bukovyna was divided into Chernivtsi and Suchava counties, comprised
of 133 settlements [15, c. 39].

However, in 1786 Bukovyna was annexed to Galicia and became the 19th district of
the Kingdom of Galicia and Lodomeria [13, c. 84]. and after the death of Emperor Joseph 1,
his successor, Emperor Leopold II unlinked Bukovyna from Galicia in 1790 [7, c. 53]. From
1790 to 1817 Bukovyna was a separate province with its capital in Chernivtsi under the
control of the Galician governorship. However, in 1817 it was returned to Galicia again .
Since August 1, 1794 Bukovyna was divided into four districts: Chernivtsi, Vyzhnytsia,
Seret, Suchava and separate Dovhopilia neighborhood [13, c. 56]. In 5 of August, 1772 a
secret convention between Austria, Prussia and Russia on the division of the Polish-
Lithuanian Commonwealth was signed in St. Petersburg. Thus, on Galician and Bukovyna
lands,occupied by Austria, they created a new administrative unit of the empire, called a
crown land “the Kingdom of Galicia and Volodomyria” [12, c. 55].

In the newly territory the Austro-Hungarian Empire decided to streamline
administrative divisions. In 3 of May, 1773 royal registry issued an order for his advisor
Kochan seconded to Galicia for administrative and territorial reform. This document
contained manual norms that ought to be guided during the reform. During its realization it
had to be taken into account previous administrative divisions, the size of a territory, natural
boundaries (the presence of rivers and mountains) and also the direction of rivers and roads
that need to take place by the middle of the county and ensure the interests of trade,
agriculture and unhampered movement of forces [13, c. 49].

Thus, in late 1773 the Kingdom of Galicia and Lodomeria divided into 6 areas(tsyrkul)
and 59 districts. First, Lviv area included districts with centers in Rava, Gorodok, Zhovkva,
Bibrtsi, Zolochiv, Brody, Zboriv, Terebovlia, Berezhany. District centers of the second
Galician compass were Zhydachiv, Galych, Monastyrska, Budzaniv, Dolyna,
Tysmenytsya, Tlumach, Snyatyn, Chortkiv, Nadvirna, Utoropy, Delyatyn, Kosiv. The
residence of third Belz area was located in Zamostia. Here centers were Ulaniv, Hurai,
Zamost, Liubachiv, Hrubeshiv, Liashiv, Uhniv, Vytkiv. The fourth, Sambir area ,included
district cities as Dubechko, Jaroslaw, Sanok, Lisko, Peremyshl, Biskovitse, Drohobych, Stryi
and 2 titles non- specified in the documents. The fifth, Velytske area, comprised cities as
Biala, Myslenitse, Velychka, Bohnia, Zyvets, Jordaniv, Dembno, Novyi Targ, Novyi Sonch.
The residence of the sixth Plsnetsk area wass situated in Zheshiv. The centers of districts
were Baraniv, Dombrova, Zheshiv, Kolbushova, Pshevorsk, Plzen, Lantsut, Bech, Dukla and
Krosno [13, c. 49].

I. Nastasiak considers that in a view of the substantial financial resources and a lack of
trained officials in 11 of October, 1774 the governor of Galicia gave a detailed plan for the

11



nrpAaBO Bunyck 32°2017

new administrative and territorial division of the land, according to which the amount and
location of districts remained unchanged, but the number of districts decreased. After a
completion the project was approved by the Galician court office in 14 of March, 1775. This
time Lviv area (tsyrkul) consisted of only three districts: Zhovkva, Berezhany and Brody.
Galician area (tsyrkul) with center Stanislav had four districts with centers in Galicia,
Zalischyky, Tysmenytsia, Kolomyia. Belz area (tsyrkul) with a residence in Zamostia had
three districts: Romashiv, Zamost, Sokal. Sambir area (tsyrkul) contained three districts with
centers in Peremysl, Lisko, Drohobych. Velytskyy area (tsyrkul) with the residence in Krakiv
had districts with centers in Zator, Viznich, Novyi Sonch. Plsnen area (tsyrkul) comprised
districts with centers in Lezhaisk, Tarnow and Krosno [13, c. 52].

However, in 22 of March, 1782, Empress Maria Theresa issued a patent under which
the division into districts were liquidated. Instead the division it was introduced only areas
(tsyrkuli), which are also called districts. It was allocated 18 districts that were directly
subordinated to a province: Bohnia, Vadovitse, Galicia, Duklya, Zheshiv, Belz, Zolochiv,
Kolomya, Lviv, Peremyshl, Sambir, Novyi Sonch, Stanislav, Stryi, Sanok, Tarniv,
Tomashiv, Chortkiv [13, c. 53].

The main criterion which was taken into account while forming the mentioned districts
was the number of people in a particular area. However, as I. Nastasiak says, from
geographical and communicational points of view the new division had some drawbacks. So
in early 1783 the Austrian authorities began to examine the question of alignment or
curvature of the districts. In 25 of November according to the Imperial Patent the center of
Tomashiv district was moved into Ternopil, the center of Zolochiv district was moved into
Berezhany, the center of Belz district was changed to Zhovkva, the center of Galician one
changed into Dolyna. In 1791 the center of Duklia district was transferred into Jasla [13,
c. 54].

In 13 of May, 1784 Emperor Joseph II issued a decree on the rise Galician cities,
according to which there was a classification of them. The criteria for the division were
municipal privileges and the right to hold fairs. The first class included only Lviv as the
capital of the Kingdom of Galicia and Lodomeria and the residence of the provincial
government, the second class had royal cities (those that had a special imperial privilege),
municipal. According to the reform of 1811 settlements which had urban privilege received
the status of city, and those who had the right to hold fairs obtain the status of town.
However, as the A. Nastasiak mentioned, such kind of division had only customer
registration value and did not generate any legal consequences [13, c. 134].

In 1809 Kingdom of Galicia and Lodomeria became part of the Duchy of Warsaw,
which emerged with the support of Napoleon Bonaparte. However, this situation had not last
long, and already in 1815 after a partial distinctions and displacement of district centers,
which lasted several decades, Galicia was divided into the following divisions: Bohnia,
Vadovitse, Galicia, Duklia, Zheshiv, Belz, Zolochiv, Kolomya, Lviv, Peremyshl, Sambir,
Novyi Sonch, Stanislav, Stryi, Sanok, Tarniv, Tomashiv, Chortkiv. This division has been
lasted until the mid-nineteenth century. The area of the first seven districts was settled mostly
Poles and officially called Western Galicia (with the center in Krakiv), in other districts
Ukrainians mostly lived and it was called Eastern Galicia (with the center in Lviv) [13,
c. 54].

In 1848 in Europe an active civil resistance movement that went down in history as the
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“Springtime of Nations” began. All the population of Western Ukraine participated in this
process. In 1848 Chief Rus Council nominated the emperor, parliament and government the
demand for the division of Galicia according to ethnic lines into separate administrative and
political units — western (Polish) and Eastern (Ukrainian) with the center in Lviv, making it
the crown region and association with Ukrainian Transcarpathia [4, c. 131].

But the result of these claims was only the rename of an administrative and territorial
unit. Since 1849 it has became as the “Kingdom of Galicia and Volodomyria of the Grand
Duchy of Krakiv”. The territory was divided into districts ((tsyrkuli). Districts divided into
counties (povity) [16, c. 229]. And if in the first time it was established 74 counties (povity),
in the early XX century there were already 79 [11, c. 96].

However, the Austrian government reorganized also the administrative and teritorial
division of Hungary — it was established five military districts. One of the new administrative
units became Uzhgorod district, which included comitates Ung, Bereg, Ugoch and
Maramorosh. Ukrainian intellectuals perceived this step as the formation of “Rus district” —
the prerequisites Ruthenian autonomy as a part of the Habsburg monarchy. However, in 28
of March, 1850 “Rus district” was eliminated. Ukrainians took it as a “Uzhhorod disaster”.
The fact that up to that time training in schools was hold in Ukrainian and in Uzhgorod there
was a Ukrainian functioned gymnasium [1, c. 328].

Since 1850 Austria was divided into crown provinces headed by governors or boundary
presidents, counties led by county elders, cities, led by the village mayors and villages led by
[9, p. 33]. In 26 of March,1861 Bukovyna gained boundary autonomy with the status of “the
Duchy of Bukovyna”. This duchy was divided into counties, which at the end of the
XIX century was 9: Chernivtsi, Hurahumor, Kympolunh, Kitsman, Radivetsk, Seretsk,
Storozhenets, Suchava, Vyzhnytsi [17, c. 23].

In 1867 the Austro-Hungarian Empire was formed and it was divided into 2 parts:
Hungary with Transcarpathia, Transylvania and Croatia-Slovenia, which were combined
under the name of Transleytania and Austria with Bukovyna, Galicia, Herts, Dolmatsia,
Istria, Kraina, Moravia, Silesia, Triest and the Czech Republic (Cisleithania). Unfortunately,
occupied by the Austro- Hungarian Empire Western Ukrainian land were not combined into
one region. They were divided into separate administrative units with Polish, Romanian and
Hungarian national lands.

Estimated by I. lisna, the number of departments in Galicia during the second half of
the nineteenth century has been ranged from 8 to 17. In the early XX century their number
increased. And in 1908 Galician Viceroyalty was divided into 24 departments in 1910 25 and
37 in 1912 [9, c. 35]. As for the public authorities in rural areas,(due to P. Gural), “it has
passed to landlords (dominii), thus strengthening the feudal system” [2, c. 331].

According to historians, the settlement of the Hungarians in Transcarpathia, whose
territory inhabited by the Slavs has begun from the end of the IX century because of the
transition of Ugric tribes through the Carpathians. The division of the province into
administrative districts (zhupy or comitates) was made during the XIII and early XIV
century. and, by the mention of R. Martseniyk, remained the same until the final collapse of
the Austro-Hungarian Empire[ 10, c. 46].

In the mid-nineteenth century due to the defeat of the Hungarian revolution in 1849 an
attempt to expand the rights of Rusyn counties of Hungary was made on the initiative of
Dobriansky, A. Duhovnych and other activists. As part of the Koshytsk district (county,
district) “Rus District” was allocated and included Maramoros, Ugochan, Bereg and Uzhansk
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comitates centered in Uzhgorod. However, at that time Transcarpathia was not presented as a
single administrative and teritorial entity. The Hungarian authorities have strongly sabotaged
all activities in the district administration, and already made its liquidation in 20 of March,
1850. After 1867 Transcarpathia in Hungary was not a separate administrative unit. From 71
zhupy that comprised the territory of Hungary, Transcarpathia belonged to fourth: Uzhansk
(center — Uzhgorod), Bereg (center — Coast) Ugochan (center — Sevliush,now called as
Vinogradov), Maramorosh (center — Maramorosh — Syhit) [10, c. 46-48].

Uzhansk zhupa (area was 3230 square kilometers, population contained 162,089
people.) included: Velyky Berezniaky, Perechyn, Uzhgorod, Serednie, Velykyi Kapushan
(now Slovakia) and Sobranetsk (Slovakia) districts. Bereg (area was 3786 square kilometers,
population included 236,611 people.) had Nyzhnioverechansk, Svaliava, Latorych,
Mukachevo, Felvidek, Tysohat and Mezevkason districts. Ugochan (area was 3230 square
kilometers, population comprised 162,089 people) — Velykosevliush, Korolivsky and
Halman (Slovakia) areas. Maramarosh (area was 9716 square kilometers, population
included 357,705 people.) had Dovzhan, Voliv, Khust, Tyachiv, Teresvian, Tysa, Syhet,
Vishov, Izaveld and Shuha (now Romania) areas. It should be noted that in the early
twentieth century. the proportion of ethnic Ukrainians in Transcarpathia increased. So, in
1900 Ukrainian accounted for 75.9% of the population, and 77.5% in 1914 [10, c. 48].

However, Ukrainian were also settled Spis, Sharisk and Zemplin comitates (today these
lands are of Ukrainian ethnic territories within Slovakia, the so-called Presov region) [10,
c. 49]. According to Census 1910 Ruthenians in Spis counties accounted for 7.1% Sharisk —
22% Zemplin — 11.4% [8, c. 17].

Thus, we can say that on the Ukrainian lands that were part of the Austro-Hungarian
Empire targeted designed for long periods policy in the sphere of territorial-administrative
structure was not conducted.From 71 zhupy that comprised the territory of Hungary,
Transcarpathia belonged to fourth: Uzhansk (center — Uzhgorod), Bereg (center — Coast)
Ugochan (center — Sevliush — now Vinogradov), Maramorosh (center — Maramorosh — Syhit)
[10, c.46-48]. Uzhansk zhupa (area was 3230 square kilometers, population contained
162,089 people.) included: Velyky Berezniaky, Perechyn, Uzhgorod, Serednie, Velykyi
Kapushan (now Slovakia) and Sobranetsk (Slovakia) districts. Bereg (area was 3786 square
kilometers, population included 236,611 people.) had Nyzhnioverechansk, Svaliava,
Latorych, Mukachevo, Felvidek, Tysohat and Mezevkason districts. Ugochan (area was 3230
square kilometers, population comprised 162,089 people.) — Velykosevliush, Koroliv and
Halman (Slovakia) areas. Maramarosh (area was 9716 square kilometers, population
included 357,705 people.) had Dovzhan, Voliv, Khust, Tyachiv, Teresvian, Tysa, Syhet,
Vishov, Izaveld and Shuha (now Romania) areas. It should be noted that in the early
twentieth century. the proportion of ethnic Ukrainians in Transcarpathia increased. So, in
1900 Ukrainian accounted for 75.9% of the population, and 77.5% in 1914 [10,
c. 48]. However, Ukrainian were also settled Spis, Sharisk and Zemplin comitates (today
these lands are of Ukrainian ethnic territories within Slovakia, the so-called Presov region)
[10, c.49]. According to Census 1910 Ruthenians in Spis counties accounted for 7.1%
Sharisk — 22% Zemplin — 11.4% [8, c. 17].

Thus, we can say that on the Ukrainian lands that were part of the Austro-Hungarian
Empire targeted designed for long periods policy in the sphere of territorial-administrative
structure was not conducted.
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3axapnamms, Piu [locnoauma.

Iybans P., Cemenonit A. AOMuHuCmMpamueHo-meppumopuaibHoe yCcmpoiicmeo yKpPaAUHCKUX
3emens 6 cocmase Aecmpo-Benzepckoii umnepuu.

B cmamve 2o6opumca o exoocoenuu byxosunvt 6 cocmas Ascmpo-Beneepckoii umnepuu u
0COOEHHOCIU ee AOMUHUCIPAMUBHO-MEPPUMOPUATLHO20 YCMPOUICMEa 6 ee cocmage. AKyenmupyemcst
BHUMAHUE HA 6XONCOCHUU YKPAUHCKUX 3eMenb 8 cocmaes Aecmpo-Beneepckoii umnepuu 6 pezynbmame
pazoenos Peuu [locnonumoii. OmoenvHo paccmampusaemcs aOMUHUCTIPATNUGHO-MEPPUMOPUATbHOE
ycmpotcmeo 3akapnambs.

Knioueevie cnosa: Aecmpo-Benepus, aoMuHUCmMpamueHo-meppumopuaibHoe yCcmpoucmeo,
byxosuna, 3axapnamve, Peuv [locnonumas.

YK 342.36:329.12

Ocipko P. C.

Kanouoam wpuoudHux HayK, 0oyenm,

3agidyeau Kaghedpu meopii ma icmopii depicagu i npasa
Hauionanvnozo nedazo2iunozo ynisepcumenty

imeni M. I1. /Ilpazomanosa

IIEA “JIBEPAJBHOI IMIIEPII” I KPU3A JIIBEPAJIBHOI JEPKABU:
BE3NNEKOBUI KOHTEKCT

Poszenanymo sumoxu, 3micm ma nomenyitiny mocausicms ioei’ “nibepanvroi imnepii” noeonamu
peanizayito NpupooOHUX npas MOOUHU | HaAyii 3 IMNEPCLKUM OOMIHYBAHHAM SK 2apanmicio bOe3nexu
€spoamnanmuunoi yusinizayii i MidCHAPOOHO20 NPABONOPSAOKY MA NONEPEONCEHHSI NOAUDNIEHHS KPU3U
1i0epanbHoi 0epiHcagHoOCMi.

Knrouosi crhosa: nibepanvna imnepis, imnepisa, €C, npupooui npasa moounu i nayii, aibepanvha
0epIHCABHICb, MINCHAPOOHUL NPABONOPSAOOK | be3neKa.

Meroro cTarTi € JOCHiIKEeHHs NMPOoOIeMH MOIEpeKEHHST PYHHYBaHHS MIXHAPOIHOTO
MPaBOIOPSAKY 1 Oe3MeKu B yMOBax riiobanizaii 1 Kpu3u cydacHoi JibepanbHoi nepxasu. Ha
Hally JyMKY, FOJIOBHOIO 3arpO30l0 MIKHApOJHIA Oe3neui BiJg MDKHAPOIHOTO TEPOPHU3MY,
SKUN KOHLEHTPYETHCSI HABKOJIO HOBOSIBIEHOTO iMriepchbkoro yrBopeHHs [JIJI (“BcecBiTHii
xamidar”), a TakokK OCTaHHBOI HaWOLIBIIOT “cTapoi immepii” — Pocilickkoi deneparii, sKi
CBOEI0 METOI0 MAaloTh 3HHIIEHHS €BpOATIaHTUYHOI LUBLTIZalil. Y 3B’A3Ky 3 HUM Y
€BPOIEHCHKOMY HayKoBoMYy 1 momitngHoMy auckypci (P. Kymep, H. @epriocon Tta iH.)
00TOBOPIOETHCS SIK CTIOCIO TapaHTyBaHHS MIKHAPOIAHOI Oe3MeKH ies “nmildepanbHoi iMmepii.
OcTaHHs aX HIIK HE € OYEBHJIHUM OKCIOMOPOHOM, OCKIUJIBKH II€ MOHSTTS 3a7a€ OYeBUIHHIMA
KpEaTUBHUH IMITYJIbC, IOEAHYIOUU B COO1 JAB1 MPOTUIIEKHOCTI — JIIOepaIbHO-IEMOKPATUYHUI
Jep’KaBHUM yCTpi Ta IMOEpChbKUI NPUHLMIL, Mae icTopuuHMi npeueneHT (bpuranceka
iMniepis, sika nepepocia B CHiBIPYKHICTB), @ TAKOK TOMY 1110 aBTOPH K HUHILIHIO MOJENb
s cBoei imei, mpomonytore €C (a He, Hampukian, CIIA). Ane mpu 1pomy He
BPaxOBYETHCS, 110 YHHHA TOJTITUKO-TIpaBoBa npupoaa €C He BiAMOBITaE METi, IPUHIIATIAM i
JIepKaBHO-TIPABOBOMY MeXaHi3My i7el “mibepanpHoi immepii”. Lle € Hacmimok Kpu30BOTO
XapakTepy Cy4dacHOi CBpPOMEHCHKOI Jep>KaBHOCTI JiOepalbHO-IEMOKPATHIHOT Opi€HTAIll,
sKa, BUCTOABIIM 1 miepemirmu y Jlpyriii CBITOBiM BiliHI TOTaJiTapHy (HAIUCTCHKY
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